

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied  
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

STATE LAW LIBRARY

---

---

NINETY - EIGHTH LEGISLATURE

---

---

Legislative Document

No. 479

H. P. 349

House of Representatives, February 6, 1957.

Referred to the Committee on Education, sent up for concurrence and 750 copies ordered printed.

HARVEY R. PEASE, Clerk

Presented by Mr. Hanson of Gardiner.

---

---

STATE OF MAINE

IN THE YEAR OF OUR LORD NINETEEN HUNDRED  
FIFTY-SEVEN

---

---

**AN ACT Relating to Fees of and Duty of Department of Education Concerning  
Schools of Barbering and Hairdressing and Beauty Culture.**

---

---

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

**Sec. 1. R. S., c. 25, § 213, amended.** The last paragraph of section 213 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes, as amended by chapter 193 of the public laws of 1955, is hereby further amended by adding at the end thereof, a new sentence, as follows:

**'Each school of barbering and of hairdressing and beauty culture shall annually pay \$25 to said Board to defray the cost of the inspections required. Said sum shall be payable on or before the first day of January in each year.'**

**Sec. 2. R. S., c. 25, § 215, amended.** The 2nd paragraph of section 215 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'The Board shall also make rules and regulations not contrary to law to be approved by the Bureau of Health, prescribing the requirements for the construction and operation ~~maintenance and for sanitary requirements~~ **purposes** of any school of barbering or of any school of hairdressing and beauty culture, subject to a license under the provisions of sections 213 to 230, inclusive.'

**Sec. 3. R. S., c. 25, § 215-A, additional.** Chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to be numbered 215-A, to read as follows:

**'Sec. 215-A. Duties of Department of Education.** The Department of Education shall be charged with the duty of supervising the curriculum, operation and instruction of any school of barbering or any school of hairdressing and

beauty culture, except sanitary requirements of any such school. The Department of Education may make rules and regulations to carry out the provisions of this section.'

Sec. 4. R. S., c. 25, § 222, amended. Section 222 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes, as amended by chapters 148 and 390, both of the public laws of 1955, is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 222. Schools of barbering, hairdressing and beauty culture; fees. No school of barbering shall be approved by the ~~board~~ State Board of Education until it shall attach to its staff a physician duly licensed to practice medicine in the state where the school is located who shall instruct the students by lectures or demonstrations at least twice but not more than 4 times during the course on subjects of sanitation, sterilization, general anatomy and diseases, nor unless it has a minimum requirement of a continuous course of study of 1,000 hours distributed over a term of not less than 6 months, ~~or in lieu thereof has satisfactorily completed a course of instruction of 1,500 hours in not less than 9 months in a school of barbering approved by said Board~~ including practical demonstrations, written or oral tests and theoretical and practical instruction in sanitation, fundamentals for barbering, hygiene, histology of the hair, skin, face and neck, diseases of the skin, hair, glands and nails, massaging and manipulating the muscles of the upper body, hair cutting, shaving, and arranging, dressing, coloring, bleaching, tinting the hair, sterilization and the use of antiseptics, cosmetics and electrical appliances customarily used in the practice of barbering, which course of study and instruction shall be subject to the approval of said ~~Board~~ State Board of Education. No school of barbering shall be an approved school until approval shall be recorded in the records of said ~~board~~ State Board of Education and until it shall receive a certificate of approval issued by said ~~board~~ State Board of Education. ~~The fee for such certificate shall be \$25 and it shall be good for 1 year from the date when issued, unless sooner suspended.~~ Said certificate may, so long as such school continues to meet the approval of said ~~board~~ State Board of Education, be renewed from year to year upon payment of a fee of \$25 for each renewal. The ~~board~~ State Board of Education may revoke any such certificate at any time for cause, provided ~~however, that~~ notice shall be given to such school of said proposed action in order that said school may have an opportunity to be heard. No person shall be engaged to instruct in any practice of barbering as defined in section 214 unless said instructor has a certificate to practice barbering under the provisions of sections 213 to 230, inclusive, excepting physicians as specified ~~above~~.

No school of hairdressing and beauty culture shall be approved by said ~~board~~ State Board of Education until it shall attach to its staff a physician duly licensed to practice medicine in the state where the school is located, and familiar with the installation and use of electrical appliances adapted to hairdressing and beauty culture, nor unless it has a minimum requirement of a continuous course of study of 1,500 hours distributed over a term of not less than 9 months, including practical demonstrations, written or oral tests and theoretical and practical instruction in sanitation, sterilization and the use of antiseptics, cosmetics and electrical appliances, which course of study and instruction shall be subject to the approval of said ~~board~~ State Board of Education. Time spent

in any out-of-state school of hairdressing and beauty culture may be credited in full or in part against said 1,500 hours, subject to the decision and approval of the ~~Board~~ **State Board of Education**. No school of hairdressing and beauty culture shall be an approved school until approval shall be recorded in the records of said ~~board~~ **State Board of Education** and until it shall receive a certificate of approval issued by said ~~board~~ **State Board of Education**. ~~The fee for such certificate shall be \$25 and it shall be good for + year from the date when issued, unless sooner suspended.~~ Said certificate may, so long as such school continues to meet the approval of said ~~board~~ **State Board of Education**, be renewed from year to year ~~upon payment of a fee of \$25 for each renewal.~~ The ~~board~~ **State Board of Education** may revoke any such certificate at any time for cause, provided ~~however, that~~ notice shall be given to such school of said proposed action in order that said school may have an opportunity to be heard. No person shall be engaged to instruct in any of the branches of hairdressing and beauty culture as defined in section 214 unless said instructor has a certificate to practice hairdressing and beauty culture under the provisions of sections 213 to 230, inclusive, excepting physicians as specified ~~above.~~

**Sec. 5. R. S., c. 25, § 227, amended.** The 1st paragraph of section 227 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'The ~~board~~ **Board of Education** or the **Board of Barbers and Hairdressers** may, with respect to certificate of registration granted by the respective **Boards**, either refuse to issue or renew or may suspend or revoke any certificate of registration granted by it under the provisions of sections 213 to 230, inclusive, for:'